
 
AGENDA 

City of Lucas  
City Council Meeting  

March 7, 2019  
7:00 PM  

City Hall – Council Chambers 
665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  

 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, March 7, 2019 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City 
Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authorized by 
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking 
confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting.  
 
Call to Order  
 

• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input  
The Citizen Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a 
“Request to Speak” form and submitting to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City Council meeting.  
However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City council cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but 
may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda.  
 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Olk) 
 
Community Interest  
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, 
congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming 
City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) announcements involving imminent threat to public health and 
safety.  
 
2. Items of Community Interest. (Mayor Olk) 
 

A. Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 86th Legislature and provide 
guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.   

 
Consent Agenda  
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a single vote approval.  
If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  

 
A. Approval of the minutes of the February 21, 2019 City Council meeting. (Special Projects 

Coordinator Kent Souriyasak) 



 
B. Consider amending the Fiscal Year 18/19 budget to reallocate funds totaling $582,838.82 

for capital improvements previously approved in Fiscal Year 17/18. (Finance Director Liz 
Exum) 

 
Regular Agenda  
 
4. Consider the request by Anita Ahmadi of 2540 West McGarity Lane to install a gate on Allison 

Lane and discuss maintenance and possible construction of Allison Lane and public safety 
access. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
5. Discuss funding strategies for future water and roadway infrastructure projects including 

issuance of Certificates of Obligation and the potential impact to the existing property tax rate. 
(Finance Director Liz Exam, City Manager Joni Clarke, SAMCO Financial Advisor Mark McLiney) 

 
6. Consider the request by O’Reilly Auto Parts for approval of the landscape plan, site plan, and 

architectural plan for a tract of land being 1.140 acres located in the William Snyder Survey, 
ABS #821, otherwise known as Lot 1, Block A of the O’Reilly addition that is located north of 
571 South Angel Parkway. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
7. Review Article III of the City Charter and provide direction to the City Attorney regarding any 

proposed amendments to be considered as part of a Charter update. (City Attorney Joe Gorfida) 
 
Executive Session Agenda  
Pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the 
purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 
This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  
 
8. An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting. 
 
9. Adjournment.  
 
Certification  
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on 
February 28, 2019.   
 
 

______________________________________ 
Kent Souriyasak, Special Projects Coordinator 

 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Kent Souriyasak at 
972.912.1213 or by email at kent@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Citizen Input  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
2. Items of Community Interest.  
 

A. Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 86th Legislature and 
provide guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.   

 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 
 



Item No. 03 City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 

Requester: Special Projects Coordinator Kent Souriyasak 
Finance Director Liz Exum 

Agenda Item Request 

3. Consent Agenda:

A. Approval of the minutes of the February 21, 2019 City Council meeting.

B. Consider amending the Fiscal Year 18/19 budget to reallocate funds totaling
$582,838.82 for capital improvements previously approved in Fiscal Year 17/18.

Background Information 

Agenda Item 3B: 

The attached spreadsheet details outstanding contract balances by vendor, account number and 
funding source.  Each of these contracts were previously budgeted during Fiscal Year 17-18.  
Reallocation is necessary to properly encumber outstanding contract balances in Fiscal Year 18-
19. 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. Minutes of the February 21, 2019 City Council meeting
2. Reallocated Funding for Capital Projects

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA 

Recommendation 

City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda. 

Motion 

I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 



1 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 1 9  

City of  Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

February 21, 2019 
7:00 P.M. 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas 
 

MINUTES 
 
Call to Order  
 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele  
Councilmember Wayne Millsap 
Councilmember Tim Baney     
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher  
 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida 
City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens 
Finance Director Liz Exum  
Building Inspector Scott DeJong 
 

Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present.  Everyone was reminded to silence their cell 
phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
Citizen Input  
 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
There was no citizen input at this meeting.  
 
Community Interest  
 
2. Community Interest.  
 

A. Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 86th Legislature and 
provide guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.   

 
There was no legislative update given at this meeting.  
 
Mayor Olk discussed other items of community interest that included the Texas Trash Off Cleanup 
event scheduled for April 6, 2019 that would coincide with the electronic recycling event also 
scheduled for that same day.  Mayor Olk noted that the City’s Founders Day event was scheduled 
for May 11 from 12 Noon to 4 pm, and Mayor Pro Tem Peele encouraged residents to donate to the 
Stick Horse Rodeo event and participate in the day’s activities.  Mayor Olk noted that the City would 
be holding their General and Special Election on May 4 that included City Council seats 5 and 6 on 



2 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 1 9  

the ballot as well as renewing the Fire District along with the one-half percent sales tax allocated 
towards the district.  Early voting would be held April 22 through April 30.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele discussed mosquito control safety measures pertaining to horses, livestock, 
and other insects, and referred to a newsletter article in the March edition of the Lucas Leader for 
more information.  
 
Mayor Olk discussed the City’s 60th Anniversary celebration held on February 19 and thanked 
Councilmember Fisher for her historical displays at the event. Mayor Olk informed the Council that 
Lucas Family Dental would be having their ribbon cutting ceremony on February 27 at 11am if any 
Councilmembers could attend. Councilmember Fisher stated she would be in attendance.  
 
Chief Stephens informed the Council that the new fire engine was tentatively scheduled to arrive in 
Lucas by the end of March.  
 
Councilmember Lawrence stated that the Lovejoy High School basketball team had advanced to the 
next round in the playoffs and encouraged citizens to come out and support the team. 
 
Councilmember Fisher stated that the Technology Committee would be meeting March 12 and 
encouraged citizens to attend.  
 
Consent Agenda  
 
3. Consent Agenda. 

 
A. Approval of the minutes of the February 7, 2019 City Council meeting.  

 
B. Approval of the City of Lucas Investment Report for quarter ending December 31, 

2018.  
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence 
to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 
to 0 vote.   

 
Public Hearing Agenda 

 
4. Conduct the first of two public hearings for the voluntary annexation requested by Gary 

Cobb for a tract of land located in the Montgomery Birch Survey, Abstract A0115, Tract 
19, being all of 10.696 acres, otherwise known as 2020 East Lucas Road.  

 
Building Inspector Scott DeJong gave a presentation explaining that the property owner entered into 
an annexation agreement in September of 2014.  A building permit and annexation application has 
been filed as part of the development agreement. This annexation was voluntary but required two 
public hearings.   
 
Mayor Olk opened the public hearing at 7:13pm, there being no one wishing to speak, and the 
public hearing was closed.  
 
This item was for discussion purposes only, no formal action was required.  



3 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 1 9  

5. Conduct the second of two public hearings for the voluntary annexation requested by 
Gary Cobb for a tract of land located in the Montgomery Birch Survey, Abstract A0115, 
Tract 19, being all of 10.696 acres, otherwise known as 2020 East Lucas Road.  

 
Building Inspector Scott DeJong stated that this was the second required public hearing for this 
annexation request.  
 
Mayor Olk opened the public hearing at 7:14 pm, there being no one wishing to speak, the public 
hearing was closed.  
 
This item was for discussion purposes only, no formal action was required.  
 
Regular Agenda  
 
Mayor Olk announced that the Council would be discussing Agenda Item 11 at this time.  
 
11. Discuss FM 1378 Maintenance Project by the Texas Department of Transportation.  
 
Brenan Honey, Collin County Engineer for TxDOT discussed project updates with the City Council 
related to TxDOT roadways.  The first project Mr. Honey discussed was the maintenance safety 
project for FM 1378 stating that the safety project would extend from White Rock Creek Bridge 
south of Stacy Road all the way down to Parker Road.  He explained that the roadway would most 
likely have 3-foot shoulders and they would be upgrading approximately 200 driveways associated 
with this project and 17 culverts.  Mr. Honey stated that they would level up and provide a base 
repair with three-quarter inch overlay high pressure open course asphalt. That allows for better 
drainage. Mr. Honey noted that the project would be going to bid in May and approximately two 
months later construction would begin. The project would begin with drainage. Rumble strips, new 
signage and new striping would all be included in the maintenance project and would take 
approximately 13 months to complete.  
 
Mr. Honey further explained that the next TxDOT project scheduled would be the intersection 
improvements at the Bait Shop (Lucas Road and Southview Drive). He noted that the survey had 
been completed, traffic data was being finalizing along with utility investigation for the area. Mr. 
Honey stated that TxDOT would be meeting with property owners in May/June and there was a 
possibility that a public hearing may have to be held. He noted that they were working with a 
consultant to assess options for the intersection to identify the best footprint possible allowing for 
increased traffic movement and turn lanes.  
 
Mayor Olk stated that the intersection was a concern due to the traffic congestion. He reminded Mr. 
Honey that the City partnered with Collin County to purchase the vacant property at that 
intersection to assist with improvements to the area. Mayor Olk stated that the City would like to 
meet with TxDOT once plans were ready for the intersection improvements, and clarified that the 
additional shoulder work was needed to allow vehicles to pull over when emergency vehicles needed 
to pass.  
 
Mr. Honey discussed adding turn lanes and the need to potentially move traffic signals as part of the 
safety project.  
 
Councilmember Fisher asked if a left turn lane would be added to the Estates Parkway intersection 
improvements.  



4 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 1 9  

 
Mr. Honey stated that they would be widening the intersection to provide left turn lanes and would 
most likely have to build a temporary turn lane in order to move traffic through the Bait Shop 
intersection.  
 
Mr. Honey stated that he could provide the City with further updates in May or June once they have 
more details on the projects. 
 
This item was for discussion purposes only, no formal action was taken.  
 
Mayor Olk moved back to Agenda Item No. 6 on the Regular Agenda.  
 
6. Consider the acceptance and approval of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 presented by BrooksWatson & Co 
 
Mike Brooks, with BrooksWatson CPA’s, gave a presentation on the City’s Annual Financial Report.  
He discussed the audit process, the City’s assets, general fund balance, general fund revenue and 
expenditures, as well as utility fund revenue and expenditures. Mr. Brooks stated that the City had 
prepared a comprehensive annual financial report and gone above and beyond the standard 
reporting requirements.   
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember Fisher 

to accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for fiscal year 2017-2018. The 
motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
7. Consider the renewal of the Lovejoy ISD EMS Services Contract.  
 
Chief Stephens gave a presentation stating that the contract with Lovejoy ISD for emergency 
medical services provided at their football games was an automatic renewal contract that was up for 
renewal. 
 
Chief Stephens explained how calls were responded to while an apparatus was located at the football 
game and coverage that occurred at the fire station to respond to emergency calls.  He noted that 
Medic 862 covers the game while Medic 861 covers the City.  Should Medic 861 be on another call, 
mutual aid would be dispatched. Chief Stephens noted that 21 of the 25 games were covered using 
volunteer emergency responders.  
 
Councilmember Duke asked if the contract covered the costs associated with working the games 
and potentially transporting patients.  
 
Chief Stephens stated that the contract did cover costs appropriately and an overtime rate was used 
in the contract calculation for services provided.  
 
Mayor Olk stated that for future updates, a memorandum could be sent annually regarding the status 
of this coverage being provided.  
 
The City Council was in agreement to continue the contract with automatic renewals.  
 
8. Consider approving Resolution R 2019-02-00480 supporting the City of Lucas applying 

for the FY 2018 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant.  



5 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 1 9  

 
Chief Stephens stated that the SAFER grant was available to apply for but was requesting 
permission to apply as this was a cost sharing grant where the City would have to provide a certain 
amount of funding.  Chief Stephens stated that the grant provided funding to increase the number 
of trained front line firefighters.  He further explained that the grant provided for 75 percent of the 
actual costs incurred in each of the first and second years of the grant, and 35 percent of actual costs 
incurred in the third year of the grant.  
 
Chief Stephens reviewed with the Council the City’s projected annual contributions associated with 
adding three full-time firefighters. 
  
Finance Director Liz Exum explained how the tax rate could be affected with adding additional staff 
members. Ms. Exum discussed the tax rate and maintenance and operations increases that would 
equate to a 4.26 percent increase in year one.  Ms. Exum reviewed each year and the potential affect 
it would have on the budget and tax rate. Ms. Exum further explained that the calculations did not 
include adjusted tax values for 2019 or new properties added to the tax role as of January 1, 2019.  
 
Mayor Olk stated that the projections did not anticipate growth, and if staff members were 
increased, it could trigger an election if revenue caps are put in place during this legislative session.  
 
Councilmember Millsap noted that years 1, 3 and 4 would require an election because the City would 
be asking for an eight percent increase in the tax rate.  
 
The Council discussed how disbursement of the grant funds was applied, how funding would be 
disbursed if personnel hired as part of the grant left the City, and the need for additional firefighters 
as the City grows.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence to approve Resolution R 2019-02-00480 supporting the City of Lucas 
applying for the FY 2018 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 
(SAFER) Grant. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
9. Discuss timeline for Capital roadway and water projects.  
 
City Engineer Stanton Foerster explained the capital project timeline outlining projects that were in 
the design phase and the construction phase.  
 
Councilmember Millsap stated the schedule was easy to read and manage for future projects.  
 
This item was for discussion purposes only, no formal action was taken on this item.  
 
10. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and enter into separate contracts 

for the construction of Stinson Road (Bid #015-19), Blondy Jhune Road (Bid #016-19), 
and Winningkoff Road (Bid #017-19) with McMahon Contractor in the amount not to 
exceed $6,775,235.14 plus a five percent contingency of $338,762 for a total of 
$7,113,997.14.  

 
City Engineer Stanton Foerster stated that pre-bid meetings were held and McMahon Contractor 
submitted the lowest bid. Mr. Foerster stated that the City expects timely completion of the contract 
with the timeframes indicated by McMahon’s bid. He outlined that the City may assess liquidated 



6 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 1 9  

damages in the amount of $500 per day for Winningkoff and $1,000 per day for Stinson and Blondy 
Jhune for each day the project was delayed in completion.  
 
Councilmember Fisher expressed concern related to drainage drawings that depict using right of way 
on resident’s property and funding had not been allocated for that acquisition.  
 
Mr. Foerster stated that homes on Blondy Jhune from the Hendrix Farm to the west bridge were 
considered prescriptive right of way, and prescriptive right of way would not obtained. However, 
construction access may be needed in those areas.  The City would obtain construction easements, 
but if the property owner did not want to participate, they would not be required to do so. 
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Baney, to authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and enter into separate contracts 
for the construction of Stinson Road, Blondy Jhune Road, and Winningkoff Road 
with McMahon Contractor in the amount not to exceed $6,775,235.14 plus a five 
percent contingency of $338,762 for a total of $7,113,997.14.  The motion passed 
unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
12. Consider setting a policy for the board/commission appointment process.  
 
Councilmember Duke stated that it was brought to his attention that several applicants were 
confused about the appointment process and expectations. He discussed how board appointments 
had been handled differently and believed it would be beneficial to have a policy in place to convey 
the same message to prospective applicants.  
 
The Council discussed how the board appointment process had evolved through the years and 
various ways in which the appointment process could be handled.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele suggested applications be accepted throughout the year and a one-time 
appointment process took place in December, including existing board members that were up for 
reappointment. Mayor Pro Tem Peele stated that she would like to maintain the option to hold 
interviews for the Board of Adjustment in Executive Session.  
 
Mayor Olk noted that he was in favor of holding a Meet and Greet reception inviting new applicants 
and existing board members to the event. During the event, Councilmembers could provide 
information about the various boards and volunteer opportunities, additional interviews could be 
held if needed, and appointments would take place in December.  Mayor Olk noted that the Meet 
and Greet reception could take place several months before the appointment process in December.  
 
Councilmember Fisher stated that she would volunteer to be part of a subcommittee to formulate a 
policy.  
 
The City Council was in agreement with the following guidelines regarding the board appointment 
process:  
 
• Appointments take place in December annually  
• Hold Meet and Greet Reception, separate from Council meeting, for prospective applicants and 

existing board members 



7 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 1 9  

• Have presentation materials available for each Board describing their responsibilities and the 
appointment process  

• Create deadline for application submittals in order to hold Meet and Greet and conduct 
interviews if necessary.  

13. Consider the Fiscal Year 19/20 budget calendar(s) being proposed for the fiscal year 
19/20 budget process.  

 
Finance Director Liz Exum presented the budget calendars depicting various meeting dates needed 
depending whether the effective tax rate was used or a tax rate that went beyond the effective tax 
rate.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Mayor Olk, seconded by Councilmember Fisher to approve 

the calendar dates as presented. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  
 
Executive Session Agenda  
 
14. Executive Session. 
 
An Executive Session was not held at this meeting.  
 
15. Adjournment.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Duke to adjourn the meeting at 9:01 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 
0 vote.  

 
 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
Mayor Jim Olk       Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



City of Lucas

Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Re-allocated Funding for Capital Projects

Budgeted through Paid through Reallocation Funding Source

Account No Vendor Project Fiscal Year 17/18 Fiscal Year 17/18 Fiscal Year 18/19 Fiscal Year 18/19

By Contract

21-8210-490-120 BW2 Parker Rd Waterline Phase 1 64,500.00$          63,234.00$             1,266.00$            Water Fund Reserves

21-8210-490-120 Contingency/Remaining Parker Rd Waterline Phase 1 70,427.00$          28,107.29$             42,319.71$          Water Fund Reserves

21-8210-490-122 BW2 Parker Rd Waterline Phase 2 33,500.00$          32,390.00$             1,110.00$            Water Fund Reserves

21-8210-490-122 Contingency/Remaining Parker Rd Waterline Phase 2 507,503.00$        427,735.50$           79,767.50$          Water Fund Reserves

21-8210-490-125 BW2 North Pump Station Water Tower & Pump House 185,000.00$        112,120.00$           72,880.00$          Water Fund Reserves

21-8210-491-123 Birkhoff Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve 144,645.00$        141,374.37$           3,270.63$            2017 CO General Fund

21-8210-491-123 Contingency/Alliance G Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve 100,480.00$        93,544.95$             6,935.05$            2017 CO General Fund

21-8210-491-124 Birkhoff Stinson Road/West Lucas Intersection 91,130.00$          83,339.40$             7,790.60$            2017 CO General Fund

21-8210-491-124 Camino Stinson Road/West Lucas Intersection 445,332.00$        363,763.00$           81,569.00$          2017 CO General Fund

21-8210-491-124 Alliance Geotech Stinson Road/West Lucas Intersection 14,884.13$          4,884.13$               10,000.00$          2017 CO General Fund

21-8210-491-124 Contingency/Remaining Stinson Road/West Lucas Intersection 28,355.87$          3,619.98$               24,735.89$          2017 CO General Fund

21-8210-491-126 Birkhoff West Lucas Road/Country Club Intersection 82,700.00$          55,303.39$             27,396.61$          2017 CO General Fund

21-8210-491-127 Birkhoff Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve to Snider Lane 215,850.00$        106,867.17$           108,982.83$         2017 CO General Fund

21-8210-491-128 KCI** Stinson Road Parker Road to Bristol Park 272,222.82$        168,222.82$           104,000.00$         2017 CO General Fund

21-8210-491-129 Lakes Engineering Blondy Jhune Road West Bridge to Winningkoff Road 115,315.00$        104,500.00$           10,815.00$          2017 CO General Fund

Total 2,371,844.82$     1,789,006.00$        582,838.82$         

Re-allocation summary by account number

21-8210-490-120 Parker Rd Waterline Phase 1 43,585.71$          

21-8210-490-122 Parker Rd Waterline Phase 2 80,877.50$          

21-8210-490-125 North Pump Station Water Tower & Pump House 72,880.00$          

21-8210-491-123 Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve 10,205.68$          

21-8210-491-124 Stinson Road/West Lucas Intersection 124,095.49$        

21-8210-491-126 West Lucas Road/Country Club Intersection 27,396.61$          

21-8210-491-127 Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve to Snider Lane 108,982.83$        

21-8210-491-128 Stinson Road Parker Road to Bristol Park 104,000.00$        

21-8210-491-129 Blondy Jhune Road West Bridge to Winningkoff Road 10,815.00$          

582,838.82$        

Re-allocation summary by funding source

General Fund 2017 Certificates of Obligation 385,495.61$        

Water Fund 2017 Certificates of Obligation 197,343.21$        

582,838.82$        

** Lakes Engineering to finish design contract includes final payment to KCI for $8,000



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the request by Anita Ahmadi of 2540 West McGarity Lane to install a gate on Allison 
Lane and discuss maintenance and possible construction of Allison Lane and public safety 
access.  
 
Background Information  
 
Anita Ahmadi has expressed concern that other people are using her driveway to access the 
commercial tracts along Angel Parkway. Mrs. Ahmadi has access rights to a nonexclusive 
easement that has also been dedicated for public use as right of way for a future roadway.  The 
City of Lucas has not yet built this roadway but does mow the right of way on a periodic basis. 
 
At the February 7, 2019 City Council meeting, the City Council requested additional 
information regarding options for the gate location, road installation, and maintenance.  
Because these options all have associated costs, they are listed under the financial section of 
this coversheet.  
 
The City Council also requested that Fire Chief Ted Stephens determine if the area along 
Allison Lane has adequate road access for the Fire-Rescue Department to respond with the 
ambulance and engine.  Chief Stevens determined that the emergency response access from 
either McGarity Lane or from the Fox Glen Subdivision (Pennington) had its challenges: 
 

1. The Engine is able to turn south onto Allison Lane to gain access to 2540 West 
McGarity Lane but would need to back out of the entire length of Allison Lane to 
McGarity Lane. 

 
2. The Engine is able to turn south on Pennington into the Fox Glen Subdivision, but it is 

difficult to turn right (west) onto the emergency access road.  From the emergency 
access road, the Engine is unable to turn left (south) onto Allison Lane due to roadway 
width and gate location. 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Location Map 
2. Minutes from February 7, 2019 City Council Meeting  

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
The cost estimates detail each potential option regarding Allison Lane: 
 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

1. Build Allison Lane – Installation of a 24’ wide road six-inch base, with two inches of 
asphalt costing $61,161.  If Allison Lane is built with just the base, the cost would be 
$37,696. Annual maintenance for either option is approximately $4,000. If the width of 
Allison Lane was reduced to a 12-foot-wide roadway, the cost would be half of the 
above estimate and maintenance would also be half of the cost annually. 
  

2. Maintenance of Driveway - Cost to maintain the driveway at current level would be 
$2,000 annually that would include one semi-load of gravel and a machine to spread in 
the spring and again in the fall. 

  
3. Installation of a Gate - We received a proposed estimate for a gate that would be 

$4,400.  
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends using road millings from the City’s upcoming roadway projects (i.e. Blondy 
Jhune, Stinson and Winningkoff) for one-time maintenance to the drive as they become 
available.  Staff does not support the construction of a gate that would prevent public access 
and use of City right of way. 
 
Sec. 3.01.008     Construction in easement 
(c)     Improvements in city street easements may be allowed by specific approval of the city 
council, subject to the property owner indemnifying the city against claims for repair or 
damages that might occur because of the improvements. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the installation of a gate on Allison Lane based on the 
supporting documentation detailing the gate, road and maintenance cost options and road 
access confirmation. 



Possible Gate Locations

A
lliso

n
Lan

e

McGarity Lane

Ahmadi Residence
2540 W McGarity



















Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Finance Director Liz Exum 
  City Manager Joni Clarke 
  Mark McLiney (SAMCO Financial Advisor) 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss funding strategies for future water and roadway infrastructure projects including issuance 
of Certificates of Obligation and the potential impact to the existing property tax rate.  
 
Background Information  
 
At the January 3, 2019 City Council meeting, future roadway reconstruction projects as 
identified in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan and Thoroughfare Plan were discussed. For the 
purpose of planning, the City Council agreed to tentatively use the amount of seven or eight 
million dollars for Certificates of Obligation funding and discuss the potential impact to the 
existing property tax rate. Financial Advisor Mark McLiney from SAMCO will be discussing the 
proposed timeline for the issuance of new debt and the projected impact to the existing property 
tax rate.   
 
Unfunded roadway projects to be considered for planning purposes include: 
 

• Stinson Road northern section from Bentwater Drive 
 to the Reverse Curve         $2,100,000  

• Winningkoff Road southern section from East Lucas Road 
 to the Reverse Curve       $2,700,000 

• Design estimated at 10 % of construction costs   $480,000 
• Project management cost estimated at 10 % of construction  $480,000 
• Contingency 10 %       $480,000 

Total unfunded project costs for general fund  $6,240,000  
  

Unfunded water projects to be considered for planning purposes include: 
 

• Waterline looping        $200,000  
• Rollingwood Circle/Choice Lane/Lakeview Drive Six-Inch 

Waterline Loop (97 homes)      $432,165 
• Edgewood Lane/W. Lucas Road and Cedar Bend Trail 

E. Lucas Road Six-Inch Waterline Loops (32 homes)  $113,530 
• Graham Lane/Rock Ridge Court Eight-Inch Waterline 

Loop (34 homes)       $571,775 
• Project management cost estimated at 10 % of construction  $131,747 

Total unfunded project costs for water fund   $1,449,217 

 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

City Council may want to consider the design of the following general fund projects in order to 
take advantage of potential funding opportunities from the Collin County Bond Program: 
 

• Snider Lane western section and bridge from Winninkoff Road to 
Shady Lane (estimated 20% of $4.1 M construction costs)   $820,000 

• Stinson Road middle section and bridge from Bristol Park to 
Bentwater Drive (estimated 20% of $4.1M construction costs)      $820,000   

Total unfunded additional project costs to consider  $1,640,000 
 

  Total unfunded costs for both funds    $9,329,217 
 
The tax rate impact study prepared by SAMCO does not include the projects listed above in their 
calculation. There will be an additional impact to the projected tax rate. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Tax Rate Impact Study $7M – SAMCO 
2. Tax Rate Impact Study $9M – SAMCO 
3. Timeline for 2019 Certificates of Obligation 
4. Projected Fund Balance – General Fund 
5. Projected Fund Balance – Water Fund 
6. Property Tax Collection by Fiscal Year 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
These projects are not funded in the Fiscal Year 18-19 budget.  The cost estimates are schematic 
in nature and are subject to revision as engineering design progresses. 
 
Recommendation  
 
City Staff recommends using Certificates of Obligation to fund future roadway and water 
reconstruction projects identified in the City’s Capital Improvement and Thoroughfare Plans.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny obtaining funding for future roadway and water reconstruction 
projects identified in the City’s Capital Improvement and Thoroughfare Plans and authorize City 
Staff to work with SAMCO Financial Advisors on the Notice of Intention Resolution to issue 
Certificates of Obligation in an amount not to exceed $_______________.  
 
 
 



Current 2018 Tax Rate
M&O 0.2023 66.72% Tax Year Fiscal Year Taxable Less: Net Growth
I&S 0.1009 33.28% Ending 9/30 Values Freeze Values Taxable Values Rate
Total 0.3032 100.00% 2011 2012 $567,043,409 -$49,461,013 $517,582,396

2012 2013 $589,607,007 -$52,474,732 $537,132,275 3.78%
2013 2014 $663,672,428 -$60,443,626 $603,228,802 12.31%

Taxable Value Growth Rate (2018-2041) 2014 2015 $768,920,713 ‐$71,869,895 $697,050,818 15.55%
2019 8% 2015 2016 $870,966,798 ‐$84,703,362 $786,263,436 12.80%
2020 5% 2016 2017 $992,456,203 ‐$98,447,135 $894,009,068 13.70%
2021 5% 2017 2018 $1,123,948,354 ‐$117,223,614 $1,006,724,740 12.61%
2022 2% 2018 2019 $1,308,714,124 ‐$141,865,378 $1,166,848,746 15.91%

2023-2039 0% Average Growth Rate 12.38%

2018 Freeze Value Revenue $355,688

1 2 3 4 5 6
Fiscal Year Projected Net Current I&S $5,670,000 Total I&S
Ending 9/30 Taxable Values Debt Service Series 2019 Debt Service Tax Rate

2019 $1,166,848,746 1,171,588      $1,171,588 $0.1009
2020 $1,260,196,646 1,169,991      $251,300 $1,421,291 $0.1128
2021 $1,323,206,478 1,162,068      $323,800 $1,485,868 $0.1123
2022 $1,389,366,802 1,168,244      $388,400 $1,556,644 $0.1120
2023 $1,417,154,138 922,575         $435,500 $1,358,075 $0.0958
2024 $1,417,154,138 919,825         $436,300 $1,356,125 $0.0957
2025 $1,417,154,138 915,925         $436,700 $1,352,625 $0.0954
2026 $1,417,154,138 911,350         $436,700 $1,348,050 $0.0951
2027 $1,417,154,138 911,025         $436,300 $1,347,325 $0.0951
2028 $1,417,154,138 811,975         $435,500 $1,247,475 $0.0880
2029 $1,417,154,138 809,275         $434,300 $1,243,575 $0.0878
2030 $1,417,154,138 810,800         $437,600 $1,248,400 $0.0881
2031 $1,417,154,138 648,950         $435,400 $1,084,350 $0.0765
2032 $1,417,154,138 389,100         $432,800 $821,900 $0.0580
2033 $1,417,154,138 389,050         $434,700 $823,750 $0.0581
2034 $1,417,154,138 388,700         $436,000 $824,700 $0.0582
2035 $1,417,154,138 388,050         $436,700 $824,750 $0.0582
2036 $1,417,154,138 387,100         $436,800 $823,900 $0.0581
2037 $1,417,154,138 390,775         $436,300 $827,075 $0.0584
2038 $1,417,154,138 - $435,200 $435,200 $0.0307
2039 $1,417,154,138 - $433,500 $433,500 $0.0306

Total $14,666,364 $8,369,800 $23,036,164

Series 2019 CO's interest rate calculated at 4.00%.  Current interest rate would be close to 3.50%.

City of Lucas, Texas

Tax Rate Impact Study
March 7, 2019

Historical Valuations 

$7,000,000 Certificate of Obligation, Series 2019
$5,670,000 General Fund Projects



FY Ending CO's GO Refunding Bonds CO's CO's Total Revenue CO's New Total
30-Sep Series 2007 Series 2007 Series 2011 Series 2017 Debt Service Series 2019 Debt Service
2019 164,838      119,006 161,025      192,650      637,519         637,519
2020 159,738      119,964 162,950      194,275      636,927         97,300 734,227
2021 159,531      110,922 169,650      195,750      635,853         95,500 731,353
2022 154,219      106,974 161,275      192,150      614,618         98,600 713,218
2023 148,906      - 162,613      193,475      504,994         96,600 601,594
2024 143,594      - 163,200      194,650      501,444         94,600 596,044
2025 138,281      - 163,300      195,675      497,256         97,500 594,756
2026 132,969      - 168,100      196,550      497,619         95,300 592,919
2027 127,656      - 167,600      192,350      487,606         98,000 585,606
2028 - - 166,900      193,075      359,975         95,600 455,575
2029 - - 166,000      193,650      359,650         98,100 457,750
2030 - - 169,800      194,075      363,875         95,500 459,375
2031 - - 168,300      194,350      362,650         97,800 460,450
2032 - - - 194,475      194,475         95,000 289,475
2033 - - - 194,450      194,450         97,100 291,550
2034 - - - 194,275      194,275         99,000 293,275
2035 - - - 193,950      193,950         95,800 289,750
2036 - - - 193,475      193,475         97,500 290,975
2037 - - - 192,850      192,850         94,100 286,950
2038 - - - - - 95,600 95,600
2039 - - - - - 96,900 96,900
Totals $1,329,731 $456,866 $2,150,713 $3,686,150 $7,623,460 $1,931,400 $8,917,341

March 7, 2019

Current Utility System Debt Service $1,330,000 Utility Fund CO's

City of Lucas, Texas
$7,000,000 Certificate of Obligation, Series 2019

$1,330,000 Utility Fund Projects



Current 2018 Tax Rate
M&O 0.2023 66.72% Tax Year Fiscal Year Taxable Less: Net Growth
I&S 0.1009 33.28% Ending 9/30 Values Freeze Values Taxable Values Rate
Total 0.3032 100.00% 2011 2012 $567,043,409 -$49,461,013 $517,582,396

2012 2013 $589,607,007 -$52,474,732 $537,132,275 3.78%
2013 2014 $663,672,428 -$60,443,626 $603,228,802 12.31%

Taxable Value Growth Rate (2018-2041) 2014 2015 $768,920,713 ‐$71,869,895 $697,050,818 15.55%
2019 8% 2015 2016 $870,966,798 ‐$84,703,362 $786,263,436 12.80%
2020 5% 2016 2017 $992,456,203 ‐$98,447,135 $894,009,068 13.70%
2021 5% 2017 2018 $1,123,948,354 ‐$117,223,614 $1,006,724,740 12.61%
2022 2% 2018 2019 $1,308,714,124 ‐$141,865,378 $1,166,848,746 15.91%

2023-2039 0% Average Growth Rate 12.38%

2018 Freeze Value Revenue $355,688

1 2 3 4 5 6
Fiscal Year Projected Net Current I&S $7,290,000 Total I&S
Ending 9/30 Taxable Values Debt Service Series 2019 Debt Service Tax Rate

2019 $1,166,848,746 1,171,588      $1,171,588 $0.1009
2020 $1,260,196,646 1,169,991      $316,100 $1,486,091 $0.1179
2021 $1,323,206,478 1,162,068      $398,400 $1,560,468 $0.1179
2022 $1,389,366,802 1,168,244      $472,400 $1,640,644 $0.1181
2023 $1,417,154,138 922,575         $567,700 $1,490,275 $0.1052
2024 $1,417,154,138 919,825         $565,700 $1,485,525 $0.1048
2025 $1,417,154,138 915,925         $563,300 $1,479,225 $0.1044
2026 $1,417,154,138 911,350         $565,400 $1,476,750 $0.1042
2027 $1,417,154,138 911,025         $566,900 $1,477,925 $0.1043
2028 $1,417,154,138 811,975         $562,900 $1,374,875 $0.0970
2029 $1,417,154,138 809,275         $563,400 $1,372,675 $0.0969
2030 $1,417,154,138 810,800         $563,300 $1,374,100 $0.0970
2031 $1,417,154,138 648,950         $562,600 $1,211,550 $0.0855
2032 $1,417,154,138 389,100         $566,200 $955,300 $0.0674
2033 $1,417,154,138 389,050         $564,100 $953,150 $0.0673
2034 $1,417,154,138 388,700         $566,300 $955,000 $0.0674
2035 $1,417,154,138 388,050         $562,800 $950,850 $0.0671
2036 $1,417,154,138 387,100         $563,600 $950,700 $0.0671
2037 $1,417,154,138 390,775         $563,600 $954,375 $0.0673
2038 $1,417,154,138 - $562,800 $562,800 $0.0397
2039 $1,417,154,138 - $566,100 $566,100 $0.0399

Total $14,666,364 $10,783,600 $25,449,964

Series 2019 CO's interest rate calculated at 4.00%.  Current interest rate would be close to 3.50%.

City of Lucas, Texas

Tax Rate Impact Study
March 7, 2019

Historical Valuations 

$9,000,000 Certificate of Obligation, Series 2019
$7,290,000 General Fund Projects



FY Ending CO's GO Refunding Bonds CO's CO's Total Revenue CO's New Total
30-Sep Series 2007 Series 2007 Series 2011 Series 2017 Debt Service Series 2019 Debt Service
2019 164,838      119,006                     161,025      192,650      637,519         637,519
2020 159,738      119,964                     162,950      194,275      636,927         122,300 759,227
2021 159,531      110,922                     169,650      195,750      635,853         125,000 760,853
2022 154,219      106,974                     161,275      192,150      614,618         122,600 737,218
2023 148,906      -                                 162,613      193,475      504,994         125,100 630,094
2024 143,594      -                                 163,200      194,650      501,444         122,500 623,944
2025 138,281      -                                 163,300      195,675      497,256         124,800 622,056
2026 132,969      -                                 168,100      196,550      497,619         126,900 624,519
2027 127,656      -                                 167,600      192,350      487,606         123,900 611,506
2028 -                 -                                 166,900      193,075      359,975         125,800 485,775
2029 -                 -                                 166,000      193,650      359,650         122,600 482,250
2030 -                 -                                 169,800      194,075      363,875         124,300 488,175
2031 -                 -                                 168,300      194,350      362,650         125,800 488,450
2032 -                 -                                 -                 194,475      194,475         122,200 316,675
2033 -                 -                                 -                 194,450      194,450         123,500 317,950
2034 -                 -                                 -                 194,275      194,275         124,600 318,875
2035 -                 -                                 -                 193,950      193,950         125,500 319,450
2036 -                 -                                 -                 193,475      193,475         126,200 319,675
2037 -                 -                                 -                 192,850      192,850         126,700 319,550
2038 -                 -                                 -                 -                 -                     122,100 122,100
2039 -                 -                                 -                 -                 -                     122,400 122,400
Totals $1,329,731 $456,866 $2,150,713 $3,686,150 $7,623,460 $2,484,800 $9,470,741

Current Utility System Debt Service $1,710,000 Utility Fund CO's

City of Lucas, Texas
$9,000,000 Certificate of Obligation, Series 2019

$1,710,000 Utility Fund Projects
March 7, 2019



 

 

 
 

 

Proposed Timetable 

 

 
   

Date  Action Required 
Monday, June 3, 2019  SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc. (“SAMCO”) sends the Request for Information (“RFI”) to the City

 
Monday, June 10, 2019  RFI due back to SAMCO

 
Thursday, June 20, 2019  City Council authorizes a Notice of Intention (“NOI”) Resolution to issue Combination Tax and Limited 

Pledge Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2019 (the “Obligations”).  

Wednesday, June 26, 2019   SAMCO submits initial draft of Preliminary Official Statement (“POS”) and Notice of Sale (“NOS”) to 
Bond Counsel. 

 
 First Publication of NOI published to the City’s newspaper 
 

Wednesday, July 3, 2019   SAMCO receives comments on POS/NOS from Bond Counsel
 
 Second Publication of NOI published to the City’s newspaper 
 

Monday, July 8, 2019  SAMCO submits second POS/NOS draft to all parties including S&P for review 
 

Week of July 15, 2019  Schedule rating conference call with S&P
 

Monday, July 15, 2019  Final POS/NOS comments due to SAMCO from all parties
 

Wednesday, July 17, 2019  Post POS/NOS to Municipal Advisory Council of Texas (“MAC”)
 

Thursday, July 25, 2019   Post POS/NOS to Post OS and electronically distribute POS/NOS website link to potential bidders.
 Receive S&P underlying rating. 
 

Thursday, August 1, 2019   Receive electronic bids for the Obligations (11:00 A.M. Central Time) via Internet.
 

 Regular Council meeting to review bids for the Obligations and adopt the Ordinance authorizing 
and selling the Obligations 

 
Wednesday, August 28, 2019  Obligations closing; Funds wired to the City’s Depository Bank.

 
___________________________ 
*Preliminary, subject to change. 

 

 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31
30

June July August

7,000,000* 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 

COMBINATION TAX & LIMITED PLEDGE REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, 
SERIES 2019 



City of Lucas

General Fund Reserves by Fiscal Year
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Projected

2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017  2017-2018 2018-2019

Unassigned Fund Balance per Audit Report 5,867,875$             6,203,973$           7,545,674$           8,774,909$      9,260,550$         9,284,690$        

Adjusted For:

FY 18-19 Projected Excess Fund Balance 143,013$           

Allocated/Restricted Reserves:

Capital  Project funding approved at  (3-2-17) City Council Meeting (1,385,000)$     (1,385,000)$        (1,385,000)$       

Reserve for Ambulance (300,000)$          
Reserve for donation for future ambulace purchase (100,000)$           (100,000)$          
Reserve for Capital ($50K per year) (50,000)$               (100,000)$        (150,000)$           (200,000)$          
FY 18-19 Transfer for Capital Projects (389,248)$          
Restricted for Brockdale Capital  Roadway Improvements (47,935)$                 (102,935)$             (140,335)$             (199,570)$        (245,054)$           (269,194)$          

Reserve Balance Prior to GASB 54 Requirement 5,819,940$             6,101,038$           7,355,339$           7,090,339$      7,380,496$         6,784,261$        
Reserve Balance in Operating Months 16.7 17.1 19.3 16.5 16 14.1

50% Current  Year General Fund Expenditures (6 months) (2,089,807)$            (2,143,890)$          (2,286,670)$          (2,583,535)$     (2,624,410)$        (2,910,512)$       

Reserve Balance After GASB 54  Requirement 3,730,133$             3,957,148$           5,068,669$           4,506,804$      4,756,086$         3,873,749$        

Reserve Balance in Operating Months 10.7 11.1 13.3 10.5 10.0 8.1



City of Lucas

Water Fund Reserves by Fiscal Year
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Projected

2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017  2017-2018 2018-2019

Unrestricted Cash Balance per Audit Report 3,382,193$             4,295,531$           5,579,746$      5,548,487$      6,117,391$         6,117,391$        

Adjusted For:

FY 18-19 Projected Excess Fund Balance 98,063$              

Allocated/Restricted Reserves:

Capital  Project funding approved at  (3-2-17) City Council Meeting (120,979)$        (120,979)$           (120,979)$           
Customer Deposits (209,565)$               (223,300)$             (239,250)$        (245,600)$        (247,600)$           (247,600)$           
Transfer to capital projects from reserves (FY 18-19) (411,652)$           
Reserve Balance Prior to GASB 54 Requirement 3,172,628$             4,072,231$           5,340,496$      5,181,908$     5,748,812$         5,435,223$        
Reserve Balance in Operating Months 13 15 19 16 18 16

50% Current  Year General Fund Expenditures (6 months) (1,397,368)$           (1,605,672)$         (1,656,470)$     (1,897,744)$    (1,949,722)$       (2,065,043)$       

Reserve Balance After GASB 54  Requirement 1,775,260$             2,466,559$           3,684,026$      3,284,164$     3,799,090$         3,370,180$        

Reserve Balance in Operating Months 7 9 13 10 12 10



City of Lucas 

Property Tax Collection by Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year M&O I&S Total

2018-2019* 2,515,676$        1,172,393$    3,688,069$  

2017-2018 2,172,294$        1,303,730$    3,476,024$  

2016-2017 2,259,028$        858,762$        3,117,790$  

2015-2016 1,880,777$        917,473$        2,798,250$  

2014-2015 1,763,732$        662,852$        2,426,584$  

2013-2014 1,677,274$        663,201$        2,340,475$  

2012-2013 1,583,293$        656,539$        2,239,832$  

2011-2012 1,430,582$        646,297$        2,076,879$  

2010-2011 1,326,597$        681,286$        2,007,883$  

2009-2010 1,328,518$        643,790$        1,972,308$  

*FY 2018-2019 data shown using budget

City of Lucas 

Property Tax Collection by Fiscal Year - Existing and New Values

Fiscal Year Existing New Value Annexation Total

2018-2019* 3,369,287$        148,970$        169,812$      3,688,069$    

2017-2018 3,315,375$        160,649$        3,476,024$    

2016-2017 2,984,232$        133,558$        3,117,790$    

2015-2016 2,662,117$        136,133$        2,798,250$    

2014-2015 2,286,022$        140,562$        2,426,584$    

2013-2014 2,216,051$        124,424$        2,340,475$    

2012-2013 2,151,204$        88,628$          2,239,832$    

2011-2012 2,014,431$        62,448$          2,076,879$    

2010-2011 1,962,636$        45,247$          2,007,883$    

2009-2010 1,903,269$        69,039$          1,972,308$    

*FY 2018-2019 data shown using budget



Item No. 06 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the request by O’Reilly Auto Parts for approval of the landscape plan, site plan, and 
architectural plan for a tract of land being 1.140 acres located in the William Snyder Survey, ABS 
#821, otherwise known as Lot 1, Block A of the O’Reilly addition that is located north of 571 
South Angel Parkway. 
 
Background Information  
 
The site has an approved preliminary plat. The site is 1.140 acres and zoned a Commercial 
Business. 
 
Landscape Plan – Landscape area required for this site is 15 percent or 6,651 square feet and 
21,059 square feet is provided. Landscape edge required is seven trees and 15 shrubs and eight 
trees and 30 shrubs are provided. Interior landscape required is 917 square feet and 1,686 square 
feet is provided. Four parking area trees are required and four are provided. Staff has asked for 
an additional three trees to be provided on the eastern boundary as a buffer until the rest of the 
property is developed. 
 
Site Plan – The construction plans, stormwater report, and engineering have been reviewed for 
this project. There is detention on the eastern side of the property. O’Reilly Auto Parts is 
proposing an 8,000 square foot building with approximately 4,000 square feet of each floor area 
and stock room. There is a requirement of 17 parking spaces and 24 are provided. The dumpster 
is screened with materials similar from the building. The total impervious cover permitted is 
32,291 square feet with 31,627 square feet being proposed. 
 
Architectural Plan – The proposed building has 100 percent masonry and 75 percent is required. 
      
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Landscape Plan 
2. Site Plan 
3. Architectural Plan 
4. Location Map 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 

 

 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

Recommendation  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommends approval of the landscape plan, 
site plan, and architectural plan.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the request by O’Reilly Auto Parts for the landscape plan, site 
plan, and architectural plan for a tract of land being 1.140 acres located in the William Snyder 
Survey, ABS #821, otherwise known as Lot 1, Block A of the O’Reilly addition. 
 



S
O

U
T

H
 
A

N
G

E
L
 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 
(
F

M
 
2
5
5
1
)

;
ANGEL PARKWAY PET

HOSPITAL ADDITION

DOC. No. 2018-62

P.R.C.C.T.

LOT 1, BLOCK A

5
7
'
-
0
"

58'-6"

N 89°44'34" E 310.48'

S
 
0
0
°
4
6
'
4
8
"
 
E

 
1
6
0
.
0
0
'

S 89°44'34" W 

310.50'

N
 
0
0
°
4
6
'
1
1
"
 
W

 

1
6
0
.
0
0
'
 

DOOR

EGRESS

DOOR

DEALER

BUILDING TYPE: BLOCK

SQ. FT. = 7,884

86'-4" X 91'-4"

O'Reilly Auto Parts

PORTAL: 50'-8"

TRASH

PAD

X

X

X

16.00'

6
6

.
0

0
'

2
.
0

0
'

2.50'

X X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

PENNINGTON PARTNERS, LTD.

VOL. 5184, PG. 1102

D.R.C.C.T.

PENNINGTON PARTNERS, LTD.

3445 SHENANDOAH STREET

DALLAS, TEXAS 75205-2219

RAICZYK VETERINARY SERVICES, PLLC

243 LATHAM DRIVE

FAIRVIEW, TEXAS 75069-6871

RAICZYK VETERINARY SERVICES, PLLC

INST. No. 20160411000430750

D.R.C.C.T.

36.11'

FIRE LANE NO PARKING TOW AWAY ZONE

FIRE LANE NO PARKING TOW AWAY ZONE

FIRE LANE NO PARKING TOW AWAY ZONE

F
I
R

E
 
L

A
N

E
 
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
T

O
W

 
A

W
A

Y
 
Z

O
N

E

F
I
R

E
 
L

A
N

E
 
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
T

O
W

 
A

W
A

Y
 
Z

O
N

E

F
I
R

E
 
L

A
N

E
 
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
T

O
W

 
A

W
A

Y
 
Z

O
N

E

F
I
R

E
 
L

A
N

E
 
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
T

O
W

 
A

W
A

Y
 
Z

O
N

E

F
I
R

E
 
L

A
N

E
 
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
T

O
W

 
A

W
A

Y
 
Z

O
N

E

F
I
R

E
 
L

A
N

E
 
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
T

O
W

 
A

W
A

Y
 
Z

O
N

E

645

6

4

5

6

4

5

645

645

645

6

4

5

6

4

5

6

4

5

644

644

644

644

644

644

643

643

643

643

6

4

2

6

4

1

6

4

1

6

4

2

6
4
3

6
4
3

644

643

6
4
5

6
4
5

6
4
4

642

6

4

5

6

4

1

6
4
2

6

4

4

6
4
2

6

4

5

645

643

644

645

6

4

5

6'-1"

1
1
'
-
0
"

1
1
'
-
0
"

1
1
'
-
0
"

7
'
-
9
"

10'-9"

GA

35

BO

2

GA

29

SOD

505 SY

SOD

910 SY

CE

1

SOD

465 SY

SOD

500 SY

SOD

160 SY

PROPOSED CROSS

ACCESS EASEMENT

3/4 " DOMESTIC WATER METER

1" DOUBLE CHECK BACKFLOW PREVENTER

1" SCHD. 40 PVC PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

PROPOSED FIRE WATER SERVICE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC SERVICE AND METER

PROPOSED  UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE SERVICE

4" PROPOSED SANITARY

SEWER SERVICE

EXISTING 8" PVC

WATER SERVICE

EXISTING OVERHEAD

POWER LINE AND POLE

EXISTING GAS SERVICE

TRANSFORMER PAD

PROPOSED 1"

IRRIGATION METER

MONUMENT SIGN

REF: ARCH

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

REF: ARCH

195 SF ROCK MULCH

430 SF ROCK MULCH

PARKING LOT LIGHT

REF. ARCH

7'-6" EXISTING SIDEWALK

1,670 SF ROCK MULCH

EXISTING TREES

185 SF

ROCK

MULCH

BO

3

CE

2

BO

1

CE

2

55 LF STEEL BED EDGING

6'-4"

9'-5"

9'-5"

9'-5"

9'-3"

ROCK MULCH

CLEAN/

WASHED

2,907 SF

ROCK

MULCH

FULL WELL ROOTED,

MIN. 1.25" MAT.

COMMON

BERMUDA

SOLID SOD

Cynodon dactylon

2,233 SYSOD

ROCK MULCH

SCIENTIFIC NAMECOMMON NAME REMARKSCONDITION SIZE
QUANT.SYMBOL ABBR.

PLANT LIST

TREES

PERENNIALS, GRASSES, GROUNDCOVERS, VINES

SHRUBS

DWARF GLOSSY

ABELIA

Abelia grandiflora

GA 64

CONT. 5  GAL.

24-30" HT. x 20" SP.,

FULL PLANT

CEDAR ELM

Ulmus parvifoliaCE 5
B&B

4" CAL.

16'-18' HT, 8'-10' SP,

WELL BRANCHED

INSTALL TO DEPTH

OF 2" (MIN.)

BUR OAK

Quercus macrocarpaBO 6
B&B

4" CAL.

16'-18' HT, 8'-10' SP,

WELL BRANCHED

LANDSCAPE SUMMARY:

1. THE PROPERTY OWNER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REGULAR WEEDING, MOWING, FERTILIZING, PRUNING AND OTHER

MAINTENANCE OF ALL PLANTINGS.  THE REQUIRED LANDSCAPING MUST BE MAINTAINED IN A HEALTHY GROWING

CONDITION AT ALL TIMES.

2. ALL LANDSCAPING WITHIN THE VISIBILITY TRIANGLES SHALL COMPLY WITH THE VISIBILITY TRIANGLE

REQUIREMENTS AS STATED IN THE CITY CODE.

3. THE SITE WILL BE IRRIGATED WITH AN AUTOMATIC UNDERGROUND IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH A RAIN/FREEZE

SENSOR, THE SYSTEM SHALL BE CAPABLE OF PROVIDING THE REQUIRED AMOUNT OF WATER FOR THE HEALTH

AND VIGOR OF THE PLANT MATERIAL SPECIFIED.

4. ALL PLANT MATERIAL LOCATIONS SHALL BE STAKED FOR APPROVAL BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO

EXCAVATION.

5. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING SITE CONDITIONS, INCLUDING PROPERTY LINES, EASEMENTS,

BUILDINGS, ROADWAY CURB AND GUTTERS, UTILITIES AND OTHER INFORMATION AFFECTING THE SCOPE OF WORK

INCLUDED IN THESE DRAWINGS.  REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL, CIVIL AND OTHER CONSULTANTS DRAWINGS FOR

SPECIFIC INFORMATION RELATING TO UTILITIES AND OTHER SITE DETAILS.  DRAWING SETS ARE AVAILABLE FROM

THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY CONTACT THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IF ACTUAL SITE CONDITIONS

VARY FROM WHAT IS SHOWN ON THESE PLANS.  ANY DAMAGE TO STRUCTURES OR UTILITIES IN PLACE WHICH ARE

CAUSED BY ANY PERSON, VEHICLE, EQUIPMENT, OR TOOL RELATED TO THE EXECUTION OF THIS CONTRACT SHALL

BE REPAIRED IMMEDIATELY AND AT NO EXPENSE TO THE OWNER.

7. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO ADVISE THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY CONDITION

FOUND ON THE SITE WHICH PROHIBITS  INSTALLATION AS SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS.

8. ALL SHRUB, GROUNDCOVER, PERENNIAL & SEASONAL BEDS SHALL HAVE A LAYER OF TWO INCHES

(2" MIN.) OF ROCK MULCH.

9. TREES SHALL BE PLANTED AT LEAST FIVE FEET (5'-0") AWAY FROM ANY PUBLIC UTILITY LINE AND FIVE FEET (5'-0")

FROM THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY.

10. TREES OVERHANGING SIDEWALKS AND PARKING OR PEDESTRIAN AREAS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM CLEAR TRUNK

BRANCHING HEIGHT OF SEVEN (8') FEET.

11. TREES OVERHANGING VISIBILITY EASEMENTS OR RIGHT-OF WAYS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM CLEAR TRUNK HEIGHT

OF NINE (14') FEET.

12. TREES OVERHANGING PUBLIC STREET PAVEMENT WILL HAVE A MINIMUM CLEAR TRUNK OF  FOURTEEN (14') FEET.

13. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A HEALTHY AND GROWING CONDITION, AND MUST BE REPLACED

WITH PLANT MATERIAL OF SIMILAR VARIETY AND SIZE IF DAMAGED, DESTROYED, OR REMOVED.

14. LANDSCAPED AREAS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF TRASH, LITTER, AND WEEDS AT ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION.

15. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR FINE GRADING,  REMOVAL OF MISCELLANEOUS DEBRIS

AND ANY ADDITIONAL FILL REQUIRED TO CREATE A SMOOTH CONDITION PRIOR TO PLANTING IN ALL AREAS.

16. FINAL GRADING SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO PLANTING.

17. PLANT SPACING IS AS INDICATED ON 'PLANT SCHEDULE' UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.   IT IS THE CONTRACTORS

RESPONSIBILITY TO PROVIDE FULL COVERAGE IN ALL PLANTING AREAS AS SPECIFIED IN THE PLANT SCHEDULE

REMARKS.

18. PROVIDE STEEL EDGING AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWING.  WHERE NO EDGING IS INDICATED, PROVIDE A SHOVEL

CUT EDGE WITHIN GROUND COVER OR SHRUB AREAS THAT ARE  ADJACENT TO TURF.

19. PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE MEASURED AND SIZED ACCORDING THE LATEST EDITION OF THE AMERICAN STANDARD

FOR NURSERY STOCK, ANSI Z60.1.

20. TOPSOIL SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 8" IN DEPTH.  SOIL SHALL BE FREE OF STONES, ROOTS AND ANY OTHER FOREIGN

MATERIAL THAT IS NOT BENEFICIAL FOR PLANT GROWTH.

21. REFER TO SHEET L1.1 FOR LANDSCAPE DETAILS RELATED TO THIS WORK.

22. REFER TO CIVIL FOR GRADING AND UTILITY COORDINATION.

23. APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF SODDING ARE SHOWN AS ON PLAN; CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SOD ON ALL AREAS

DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION.

24. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY CONSTRUCTION COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1993 (AS

UPDATED), OR ADA.  NOTIFY PROJECT ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

25. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE NECESSARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AS REQUIRED.

26. AFTER WARRANTY PERIOD, OWNER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REPLACING DEAD PLANT MATERIAL FOR LIFE OF

DEVELOPMENT.

27. ALL CONSTRUCTION WILL CONFORM TO CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS STANDARDS.

28. REFER TO PROJECT MANUAL FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO THIS WORK.

PLANTING NOTES:

2
5

9
5

 
D

a
l
l
a

s
 
P

a
r
k
w

a
y
,
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
2

0
4

F
r
i
s
c
o

,
 
T

e
x
a

s
 
7

5
0

3
4

(
9

7
2

)
4

6
4

-
4

8
0

0

w
w

w
.
b

g
e

i
n

c
.
c
o

m

L1.0

 LANDSCAPE PLAN

MDC WBM

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

1. REFER TO CIVIL PLAN FOR SITE DIMENSIONS AND LAYOUT OF BUILDING, DRIVES AND PARKING.

2. REFER TO ARCHITECT'S PLANS FOR DESIGN ELEVATIONS OF BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES.

3. ALL SITE DEVELOPMENT COMPONENTS TO CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF LUCAS, TEXAS

ZONING ORDINANCE.

4. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS PROVIDED FOR THIS

PROJECT OR TO LUCAS, TEXAS STANDARDS.

5. REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR PROPOSED AND EXISTING UTILITY LOCATIONS, SIZES AND METER

LOCATIONS.

SITE PLAN NOTES:

03/23/18

P
R

O
J
E

C
T
:

N
E

W
 O

'R
E

IL
L
Y
 A

U
T
O

 P
A

R
T
S

 S
T
O

R
E

S
O

U
T
H

 A
N

G
E

L
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

L
U

C
A

S
, 

T
E

X
A

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 O
F
F
IC

E
S

2
3
3
 S

O
U

T
H

 P
A

T
T
E

R
S

O
N

S
P

R
IN

G
F
IE

L
D

, 
M

IS
S

O
U

R
I 
6
5
8
0
2

(4
1
7
)

8
6
2
-2

6
7
4
 T

E
L
E

P
H

O
N

E

01/07/2019(A3)

LANDSCAPE AREA REQUIRED

15% OF GROSS LAND AREA (49,677 SF X .15) = 7,451 SF

PROVIDED (42%) 21,345 SF

LANDSCAPE EDGE REQUIRED

ONE CANOPY TREE AND EIGHT SHRUBS

PER 20 LF OF SOUTH ANGEL PKWY (160LF / 20LF) = 8TREES/64 SHRUBS

PROVIDED 8 TREES/64 SHRUBS

PARKING LOT INTERIOR LANDSCAPING

TOTAL PARKING AREA (15,411 SF X .05)= 770 SF

PROVIDED 3,188 SF

PARKING AREA TREES

ONE TREE PER 10 PARKING STALLS (24 / 10) = 3 TREES

PROVIDED 3 TREES

5433-00

A3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY, DEED OF RECORD NOT FOUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-STORY BRICK & STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE HT.=684.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE HT.=666.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
646

AutoCAD SHX Text
646

AutoCAD SHX Text
646

AutoCAD SHX Text
646

AutoCAD SHX Text
646

AutoCAD SHX Text
646

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE HT.=667.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE HT.=687.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE HT.=668.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(POSTED SPEED LIMIT 55 MPH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING "C"  COMMERCIAL BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING "C"

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING "C"

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL BUSINESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.O.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH THE CONCEPTS AND DESIGNS PRESENTED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE AND CLIENT FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED. REUSE OF AND IMPROPER RELIANCE ON THIS DOCUMENT WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION AND ADAPTATION BY BGE, INC. SHALL BE WITHOUT LIABILITY TO BGE, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 20' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
File:  Q:\NTX Land Planning\Working Files\O'Reilly-Lucas, TX\CAD\SHEETS\PLANTING PLAN Q:\NTX Land Planning\Working Files\O'Reilly-Lucas, TX\CAD\SHEETS\PLANTING PLAN Plotted: 1/8/2019 10:14 AM, by Monica Concienne;  Saved:  12/31/2018 8:42 AM, by mconcienne1/8/2019 10:14 AM, by Monica Concienne;  Saved:  12/31/2018 8:42 AM, by mconcienne, by Monica Concienne;  Saved:  12/31/2018 8:42 AM, by mconcienneMonica Concienne;  Saved:  12/31/2018 8:42 AM, by mconcienne;  Saved:  12/31/2018 8:42 AM, by mconcienne12/31/2018 8:42 AM, by mconcienne, by mconciennemconcienne

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS BEARING THIS SEAL ARE AUTHENTICATED, RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL OTHER PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS OR INSTRUMENTS ARE DISCLAIMED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
C  COPYRIGHT 2018 - DESIGNS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE AND ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL.  REPRODUCTION PROHIBITED WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. BRETT MANN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1984







Location Map
O’Reilly Auto Parts



Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

Requester: City Attorney Joe Gorfida  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Review Article III of the City Charter and provide direction to the City Attorney regarding any 
proposed amendments to be considered as part of a Charter update.  
 
Background Information  
 
Section 12.03 of the City’s Home Rule Charter requires that the City Council review the charter 
at least once every five years to determine whether any amendments are necessary.  
 
City Staff is also reviewing the Charter and providing updates to the City Attorney for 
compilation.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Article III of the Home Rule Charter  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to provide the following recommended updates to the Home Rule Charter:  

•  



















Item No. 08 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Executive Session:  
 
An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from 
the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. This meeting 
is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
 
Motion  
 
NA 


	00 - 03-07-2019 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	March 7, 2019
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, March 7, 2019 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authorized ...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session Agenda
	Certification

	01 - Citizen Input
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02 - Community Interest
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03 - Consent Agenda cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - 02-21-2019 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	February 21, 2019
	7:00 P.M.
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	MINUTES
	Public Hearing Agenda
	Regular Agenda

	03b - Re-allocated Funding for Capital Projects
	04 - Allison Lane gate CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	04a - Location Map
	04b - Minutes February 7th CC Gate
	05 - CO Funding CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	05a - Tax Rate Impact Study $7M SAMCO
	05b - Tax Rate Impact Study $9M SAMCO
	05c - Timeline for 2019 Certificates of Obligation
	05d -Projected Fund Balance - General Fund
	05e - Projected Fund Balance - Water Fund
	05f -Property Tax Collections by Fiscal Year
	06 - O'Reilleys Landscape, Site, Architectural plan cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	06a - O'Reilly's Landscape Plan
	L1.0
	Sheets and Views
	L1.0



	06b - O'Reilly's Site Plan
	06c - O'Reilly's Architectural Plan
	06d - O'Reilly's Location Map
	07 - Charter Review III cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	07a - Article III - Home Rule Charter
	08 - Executive Session
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion




